
 

 

Working on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council 
and Gloucestershire County Council 
 

                             
   

        
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
 

Thursday 19th December, 2013 at 2.00 pm 
 

Shire Hall, Westgate Street, Gloucester 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Cheltenham Borough Council             Cotswold District Council            Forest of Dean District Council        Gloucestershire County Council 
Municipal Offices              Council Offices                Council Offices        Shire Hall  
Promenade              Trinity House                High Street         Westgate Street 
Cheltenham              Cirencester                Coleford         Gloucester 
Gloucestershire             Gloucestershire                Gloucestershire        Gloucestershire 
GL50 9SA              GL7 1PX                GL16 8HG         GL1 2TG 
Tel: 01242 262626              Tel 01285 623000               Tel: 01594 810000         Tel: 01452 425000 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

    

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

  

 
 

 
 

Thursday 19th December, 2013 at 2.00 pm 

Council ChamberCouncil Chamber - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester 

AGENDA 

   

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  
 

The Chairman to welcome everyone to the meeting.  
 

Chairman 
 

2 APOLOGIES  
 

To receive apologies for absence. 
 

Chairman  
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

To note any declarations of interest. 
 

Chairman  
 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

To note and agree the minutes (including any actions) from the committee 
meeting on 31 July 2013. (Minutes attached).  
 

Chairman  
 

5 DRAFT PRESS AND PUBLICITY PROTOCOL (Pages 7 - 16) 
 

To adopt the Draft Press and Publicity Protocol. (Document attached).  
 

Head of Service 
 

6 OVERVIEW OF SEVERE WEATHER ARRANGEMENTS (Pages 17 - 20) 
 

To consider the contingency arrangements introduced by the Joint Waste 
Committee to address the impact of severe weather conditions, (and any 
other disruptions), on residual and food waste collections. (Document 
attached).  
 

Head of Service 
 

7 MEMBER AND PUBLIC QUESTIONS PROTOCOL (Pages 21 - 24) 
 

To consider the Draft Protocol for Member and Public Questions at Joint 
Waste Committee Meetings. (Document attached). 
 

Chairman 
 



 

 

     

 

   

8 OUTLINE DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN (Pages 25 - 48) 
 

To consider the Draft Business Plan. (Document attached). 
 

Head of Service 
 

9 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 

Tuesday 11 February 2014 at 11.00 am 
 
Tuesday 1 April 2014 at 11.00 am 
 
Tuesday 10 June 2014 at 11.00 am 

 

Chairman 
 

 
 

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP: 
 

• Cheltenham Borough Council: Cllr Roger Whyborn; Cllr Steve Jordan 

 

• Cotswolds District Council: Cllr David Fowles; Cllr Barry Gibbs 

 

• Forest of Dean District Council: Cllr Martin Quaile; Cllr Terry Hale 

 

• Gloucestershire County Council: Cllr Ray Theodoulou; Cllr Stan Waddington 

 

 

 (a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk)  
prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

 (b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: please contact: Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
�:01452 425005/fax: 425850/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

   

 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 
 



 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE WASTE PARTNERSHIP 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Waste Partnership held on Wednesday 31st 
July, 2013 commencing at 1.00 pm at the Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester. 
 
Attendance: 
 
Cheltenham Borough Council      GCC 
Cllr Steve Jordan       Cllr Stan Waddington 
Jane Griffiths        Cllr Ray Theodoulou 
  
Cotswold District Council      Stroud District Council 
Cllr David Fowles       Cllr Simon Pickering 
Claire Locke        Ray Figg 
          
Forest Of Dean District Council     Tewkesbury Borough  
Cllr Martin Quaile       Cllr Jim Mason 
Peter Hibberd       Julie Davies    
  
Gloucester City Council      Joint Waste Team 
Cllr Sajid Patel       Steve Read 
Gordon Buchanan       Tony Childs 
 

 
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 
Chairman of the Gloucestershire Waste Partnership, Councillor Stan Waddington, 

welcomed everyone to the meeting.   

 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

Apologies were received from: Councillors Roger Whyborn, (Cheltenham Borough 
Council); Ross Cook, (Gloucester City Council); Jo Walker, (Gloucestershire 
County Council), and Andy Pritchard and Scott Williams of the Joint Waste Team. 

 
3. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the Gloucestershire Waste Partnership meeting on 7 March 2013 

were confirmed and agreed as a correct record of that meeting.  

 
4. ACTIONS  

 
The Chairman gave an update on the actions from the previous meeting and 

confirmed that the following actions had been completed: -   

1) The action plans for the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy had 
been agreed, and would be published on the Recycle for Gloucestershire 
website at www.recycleforgloucestershire.com.  
 

2) The collection and disposal of waste in adverse weather conditions would be 
added to the work plan for consideration at a future meeting. (Please note 
item 9 of the agenda). 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



5. JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY ACTION PLAN 
UPDATE  
 

In 2008, the Gloucestershire Waste Partnership (GWP) adopted the Joint Municipal 

Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS), setting out the county’s objectives and 

targets from which to deliver sustainable waste management and diversion of waste 

from landfill for the period up to 2020.  

In adopting the strategy, the GWP agreed the following targets: -  

a) To increase the county recycling and composting rate to 60 per cent by 

2020, and  

 

b) To reduce residual waste per capita to 228kg (equivalent to 495kg per 

household) by the same year. 

Tony Childs, from the Joint Waste Team, gave a verbal update on the actions in 
achieving the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy targets. Referring to the 
attached data performance sheet, he informed members that the county had come 
along way in reaching the agreed targets, but that there was still a significant 
amount of work to do to increase the recycling and composting rate from 48 to 60 
per cent. 

 
6. PRESENTATION: ROADMAP TO 60 PER CENT  

 
Tony Childs, from the Joint Waste Team, gave an update on the objectives set out 

in the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) to reduce landfill in 

Gloucestershire and to increase recycling to 60 per cent.  

 

The following points were made during the presentation: - 

 

a) At the reporting of information at this meeting, the recycling and composting 

rate for Gloucestershire had increased to 48 per cent;   

 

b) Good progress had been made during the early stages of the work 

undertaken to reduce landfill;  

 

c) Steady progress continues;  

 

d) To achieve a 60 per cent recycling, it will be necessary to remove a further 

30,000 tonnes of material from landfill into recycling in Gloucestershire;  

 

e) Several members questioned the decision to measure performance based 

on reductions in recycling and composting, whilst other members considered 

how well this measurement met with targets to reduce total waste across the 

county;  

 

f) Concerns were raised about the disparities in reductions between rural and 

urban locations;  

 

Page 2



g) The Joint Waste Team would be looking at alternative models to take the 

target from 48 to 60 per cent;  

 

h) Members considered whether the current target was possibly a bridge too far 

and whether the council should consider other targets? 

 

i) Other options suggested at the meeting included: Cash for Clothes 

Initiatives; Commercial recycling involving working with supermarkets; 

Involvement with schools and colleges; supermarket reward schemes; 

encouraging more home composting; 

Throughout the discussion, members acknowledged the need for intensive 

marketing from which to convey key messages to the local community. Head of 

Service, Steve Read, stressed the need for greater consistency and suggested the 

county set its own targets rather than measuring performance against statutory 

ones. He informed members that there was very little government financial support 

at present, and that central government generally looked to local authorities to 

progress the situation.  

 

Councillor Martin Quaile highlighted concerns about fly tipping and said that he was 

staggered by the amount of fly tipping occurring in the Forest of Dean. As a growing 

concern and conscious of issues in particular areas, it was suggested that the 

matter be added to the list of suggested items for consideration at future meetings. 

Action by – Joanne Moore 

 

Throughout the discussion, the overarching view was that, whilst useful to have 

targets from which to measure progress and performance, now was the time to 

consider adopting a different approach with those members of the public who may 

be detached from the recycling process. One member questioned why the 

partnership concentrated on reducing landfill, when it might be more appropriate to 

consider energy saving initiatives. Another member believed a more meaningful 

message was required from which to educate the public. It was agreed that 

whatever marketing tools were used, the channels of communication needed to be 

easy to interpret and relevant.  

 
7. PROCUREMENT OPTIONS FOR THE TREATMENT OF FOOD AND GARDEN 

WASTE  
 
Steve Read, Head of Service for the Joint Waste Team, presented information on 

the procurement options for the treatment of food and garden waste collections in 

Gloucestershire. The Head of Service informed the committee that the council’s 

current contract for the treatment of food and mixed food/garden waste was due to 

run out in September 2014. As part of the formal renewal process for the contract, 

the Joint Waste Team had been called upon to provide a steer to the county council 

on the various options for the contract. Retaining overall responsibility for the 

procurement of this service, Gloucestershire County Council was responsible for 

making the final decision.  

 

In seeking the committee’s views, the Head of Service outlined some of the 

factors the council would need to take into account, including the need to:-  

Page 3



 

a) Divert biodegradable municipal waste (BMW) from landfill; 

b) Ensure value for money; 

c) Provide an environmentally sustainable solution from which to respond to the 

effects of climate change;  

d) Provide a mechanism for the continual improvement of the service;  

e) Ensure the service was available from the start-date of the contract;  

f) Was legally compliant, and  

g) Provided an affordable solution for the management of food and co-mingled 

food and garden waste in Gloucestershire 

The Head of Service outlined proposals relating to i) In-Vessel Composting and ii) 

Anaerobic Digestion. He informed members that in presenting the information at 

this meeting enabled him to explain the two stage evaluation process from which 

the council could make its decision. The first stage included a detailed overview of 

the recommendations, (to be considered by the Joint Waste Committee at the 

following meeting), whilst the second stage was to delegate authority to make any 

amendments to the recommendations. 

 

The Head of Service informed the committee that the proposals had been 

considered at the Environment and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

at its meeting on 23 July 2013, and feedback would inform the recommendations to 

the GCC Cabinet meeting in September.  

 

The recommendations to the Joint Waste Committee were to: - 

 

a) Endorse the food and garden waste procurement strategy to deliver 

treatment capacity (in-vessel composting and/or anaerobic digestion) for 

food and co-mingled food and garden waste; and,  

 

b) Endorse the evaluation framework and propose a preferred approach to 

Gloucestershire County Council to commence procurement and invite 

tenders for the treatment of food and co-mingled food and garden waste.  

 

A full and in-depth discussion ensued, during which the following points 

were made:  

 

a) More encouragement should be given to home composting  

b) A market exists for both options  

c) A short term proposal would allow the council to review its contract in 3 to 4 

years time 

d) It was suggested that it might be useful to consider joint working with sewage 

companies 

 

Page 4



The Head of Service noted the request to inform the Partnership of the Joint Waste 

Committee’s decision, and said that he would be willing to visit Stroud District 

Council if it was felt it might be useful to repeat the presentation. Alternatively, he 

could circulate the cabinet report to partnership members to advise them of the 

recommendations. Action by - Head of Service 

 
8. SERVICE UPDATES  

 
Due to the premature ending of the meeting, this item was postponed until the next 

meeting.  

 
9. OTHER BUSINESS  

 
Due to the premature ending of the meeting, no other business was considered at 

this meeting.  

 
10. FUTURE MEETINGS  

 
Following concerns about the overrunning of Gloucestershire Waste Partnership 

meeting to allow the Joint Waste Committee meeting to proceed, it was suggested 

that a review of the arrangements for both meetings be made, including a proposal 

that the first meeting take place mid morning, followed by a short refreshment break 

before commencing the second meeting the same day. It was agreed that Jo Moore 

from Democratic Services would circulate an email to all representatives to 

establish the preferred arrangements. Action by - Democratic Services Unit  

 

The suggestions put forward as possible items for consideration at future meetings 

included: - 

a) Review Terms of Reference  

 

b) GreenPoint Scheme 

 

c) Adverse weather conditions 

 
11. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  

 
The following dates were suggested as possible dates for meetings of the 

Gloucestershire Waste Partnership and Joint Waste Committee for the remainder of 

the year and during 2014:-  

   

22 October 2013 

19 December 2013 

11 February 2014 

17 April 2014 

10 June 2014 
 

CHAIRPERSON 
 
Meeting concluded at 14.15 pm 

 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

Draft Press and Publicity Protocol  

 

Committee Date  Thursday 19 December 2013 

 
 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team 

(01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

 

Purpose of Report This document outlines how the Gloucestershire Joint Waste 

Committee (JWC) through its Joint Waste Team (JWT) relates with the 

press, media and communication to the public via third party 

publications.  

Recommendation  The committee to: -   

a) Note the report, and 

b) Adopt the Draft Press and Publicity Protocol 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft For JWC Approval 19 December 2013 
 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  
Press and Publicity Protocol 
 
1. Purpose of this document 
 
This document outlines how the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
(JWC) through its Joint Waste Team (JWT) relates with the press, media and 
communication to the public via third party publications. It sets out: 

• The principles on which communications with the press and media are 
based. 

• The processes the JWT follows when communicating with the press 
and media. 

• The boundaries of responsibility between the JWC and the partners 
authorities  

• The boundaries of responsibilities between the JWC and the wider 
Gloucestershire Waste Partnership which includes all 6 
Gloucestershire Districts and the County Council.  

• The roles and responsibilities of individuals and the JWT that underpin 
those processes and enable the JWC and JWTJWC to communicate 
successfully with the public and with its partners. 

 
2. Principles 
 

• The JWT will aim to be, within the legitimate constraints of respecting 
commercial and personal confidentiality, open, honest, accurate, timely 
and engaging when dealing with press media queries and requests for 
information. 

• The JWT will aim to provide a single point of contact for (delegated) 
waste issues affecting the JWC partners and/or signposting enquirers 
to other sources as appropriate. 

• The JWT will provide a unified approach which aims to show all 
partners and the partnership in a positive light. 

• The JWT Head of Service or a member of the Senior Management 
Team (SMT) will normally field press or media enquiries unless 
determined otherwise by the Head of Service in consultation with the 
relevant SMG Director.   SMT is (October 2013) made up of Steve 
Read, Tony Childs, Scott Williams, Rachel Capon and Andy Pritchard   

• Unless the issue concerns just one district/borough or part thereof, or 
otherwise agreed by both parties.  GCC’s (as the administering 
authority for the JWC) press team will assist the JWT and disseminate 
press releases.  

• If the issue concerns just one district/borough, the dissemination of 
press releases will be undertaken by the press team of the authority 
concerned unless otherwise agreed by both parties.  

Page 9



3. Responding to press and media enquiries 
 
3.1 General 
 
The process to be followed in most circumstances is outlined as a flowchart in 
Appendix 1. 
 
To ensure consistency, all press and media enquiries on waste and recycling 
should in the first instance be directed to a member of the SMT at the JWT, 
who will record receipt and actions taken. If any press Officer or Freedom of 
Information coordinator receives a query directly from a journalist, they should 
in every instance refer the journalist to the JWT.  Requests made under the 
Freedom of Information Act will be handled using each Partners procedure but 
will include consultation with SMT to ensure no duplication and consistent 
replies.  
 
A list of functions that are linked to waste and recycling and which the partner 
councils have responsibility for are detailed in Appendix 1 of this paper. 
 
The JWT does not have a dedicated press officer but members of SMT will 
usually field enquiries relating to their geographical or expertise area. The 
JWT will use the Administering Authority’s press team for assistance as 
required.  
 
3.2 Interviews 
 
The decision as to who is the most relevant person to undertake interviews 
depends on the availability of Officers and Councillors, the urgency of the 
request and the sensitivity of the subject matter.   
 
For high priority, high profile or otherwise sensitive issues the Head of Service 
(or deputising member of SMT) will consult with the Chair and /or Vice Chair 
of the JWC as to who is the appropriate person to front.  
 
The JWT will assist in briefing the fronting person by providing background, 
statistics or other relevant material. In instances where the issue is neither 
controversial nor sensitive, a member of the SMT may provide an interview or 
arrange for another appropriate JWT or SMG officer to do so. 
 
Members or officers who are requested to communicate with the media 
should: 

• Make sure that they are fully briefed prior to making contact. 

• Contact the media concerned as quickly as possible. 

• Report back to the JWT following any discussion, interview or 
other communication with a journalist. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



4. Press releases 
 
4.1 General 
 
Press releases on all waste and recycling matters of JWC responsibility will be 
drafted by the JWT unless agreed  with one of the partner authorities. 
 
For example in emergency situations locally relevant information will usually 
be issued by the partner in consultation with the JWT officer who covers that 
area or other officer as appropriate. 
 

JWT press releases will be written by the most appropriate officer (which may 
be one of the GCC press team) and signed off by the Head of Service, or in 
his absence, the most appropriate member of the SMT.  
 

Press releases will normally be distributed by the GCC’s press team on behalf 
of the JWC unless it is a single district issue in which case press releases can  
be issued by the relevant District/Borough press team (see section 2. 
“Principles” above).  
 

The PR teams from all four Councils that make up the JWC will receive an 
electronic copy of all press releases sent out from the JWC.  When likely to be 
of on-going and wider interest, they will normally also be posted on the 
relevant partner’s website.  In instances where a press release names an 
individual partner council (other than the standard wording explaining the 
JWC), that press release will be signed off by that council using the internal 
process of that council. 
 
Press releases will also normally be sent electronically to Members of the 
JWC within 48 hours of the press release being issued. 
 
A JWC press release template will be used when issuing releases.  Whenever 
possible this will include the JWT logo at the top right of the release.  No other 
logos will be used unless the issue concerns one partner only in which case 
the JWT and partner logo must be given equal prominence.    
 
Within ALL press releases a standard explanation of the Gloucestershire Joint 
Waste Partnership will be included in the Notes to Editors as follows: 
 
The Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership provides waste and recycling 
services on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, 
Forest of Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. 
 
4.2 Quotations 
 
Press releases will normally include a quote from either the Chair or Vice 
Chair of the JWC. 
 
Where the release relates to waste collection matters within a specific District 
or Borough, a quote will normally also be included from the Portfolio Holder for 

Page 11



that Council; and where the release relates to Household Recycling Centres 
or waste disposal matters, a quote will normally be included from the Portfolio 
Holder for the County Council. 
 
On some occasions it may be relevant to include a quote from a member of 
the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee, the Head of Service or other 
JWT officer or from a JWC contractor (where relevant). In accordance with the 
Local Government Act 2000, quotes must not be party political, or attack the 
policies or opinions of other parties, groups or individuals.  
 
5.    Monitoring of media coverage 
 
The JWTJWC will use Gloucestershire County Council’s media monitoring 
system to keep track of media coverage.  The JWT will pay for the ‘picking up’ 
of articles that refer to the “Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership”, the 
“Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee”, “Joint Waste Team” or are 
otherwise connected to the activities and sphere of the partnership. 
  
 
6. Media relations in exceptional circumstances 
 
6.1 “Purdah Period” Prior to Elections 
 
All proactive publicity involving candidates, political parties and politicians 
involved directly with an election will cease from the issue of the notice of an 
election until after the result is formally announced. During this period, any 
publicity will not deal with views, proposals or recommendations in any way 
that identifies them with individuals, groups or parties involved in the election.  
 
 
7. Liaison with partner councils 
 
7.1     Planning and reporting 
 
The JWT will provide a quarterly update report on communication matters, 
including media coverage obtained during the quarter. 
 
The JWC will produce a Publicity and Promotion Plan as part of the annual 
Business Planning Process.  This will be made available to partnership 
councils for their comments and input prior to being submitted to the 
Committee for final approval. 
 
7.2 Meetings and liaison 

 
Officers of the JWT will meet with partner councils’ PR Officers on a regular 
basis to discuss communication and PR issues.  The timing and frequency of 
meetings will be determined in consultation with the Officers concerned.  
 
The JWT will notify partner councils’ press officers of any promotional 
activities within their area in advance. 

Page 12



 
The partner councils will allow the JWC access to their internal and external 
communication channels.  In such cases, both the JWT and the relevant 
council will agree wording of articles (based on the guidelines within this 
document). 
 
 
8. Liaison with other GWP Partners  
 
Gloucester City, Stroud District and Tewkesbury Borough Councils are not 
currently part of the JWC. A continuing relationship between these three and 
the JWC is facilitated through the continuing Gloucestershire Waste 
Partnership (GWP). The JWT are the facilitating partner for the GWP.  
 
Unless agreed otherwise at a meeting of the GWP, the JWT will carry out any 
promotional activities where requested to by the GWP on its behalf and give 
advanced notification to GWP councils’ press officers of any promotional 
activities within their area. JWT officers will also work with other partnership 
waste officers to jointly develop and deliver these activities where appropriate. 
 
Unless agreed otherwise by the GWP, the JWT will, having consulted the 
appropriate GWP partners, respond to any press enquiries received 
concerning the GWP. 
 
In instances where a GWP press release names an individual partner council, 
that press release will be signed off by that council using the internal process 
of that council. Quotations will be sought from relevant elected members.  
 
Press releases will be written by the most appropriate officer (which may be 
one of the GCC press team) and signed off by the Head of Service, or in his 
absence, the most appropriate officer from either the JWT or relevant GWP 
partner(s).   
 
Press Releases will normally be distributed by the GCC’s press team on 
behalf of the GWP unless it is a single district issue in which case press 
releases may be issued by the relevant authorities’ press team. 
 
Press releases will also routinely be sent electronically to Members of the 
GWP within 48 hours of the press release being issued. 
 
9. Leaflets & literature 
 
All paper publications are to be printed on 100% post consumer recycled 
paper.   
 
The JWT logo is to appear on the front cover of all materials, unless otherwise 
agreed.  The Recycle Now (Recycle for Gloucestershire) iconography and 
styles will normally be incorporated on promotional materials in order to link in 
with the national campaign. 
 

Page 13



The four logos of the JWCC partners will be included where relevant and 
where space permits (i.e. on larger newsletters and documents).  As a 
minimum, an explanatory statement about the JWC will be included.   
 
The Gloucestershire Joint Waste Partnership provides waste and recycling 
services on behalf of Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, 
Forest of Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. 
 
 
10.   Branding and logos 
 
The JWC logo will be the lead logo on communication material. The partner 
councils’ logos will be used where the JWC deem relevant and where space 
permits (so that material is not “over branded”, and thus distracts the public 
away from the recycling / waste message). 
 

 
11.   Freedom of Information / Environmental Information Regulations 

Requests 

As Gloucestershire County Council is the administering authority for the JWC, 
the County Council’s Freedom of Information (FoI) and Environmental 
Information Regulations (EIR) processes will be adopted. 

If an FoI/EIR enquiry is received by a District/Borough for an in scope service, 
the partner council is requested to forward it to the JWT’s designated FoI / 
EIR co-ordinator and send a courtesy response to the enquirer (copying in the 
JWT’s FoI / EIR co-ordinator) explaining that the recycling and waste function 
is now overseen by the JWC, and that as such their enquiry has been 
forwarded to the JWT. 

The JWT’s FoI /EIR co-ordinator will liaise with Freedom of Information 
Officers in the relevant Council(s) and forward the query onto the relevant 
JWT officer, coordinate the response and provide the FoI / EIR co-ordinators 
in the relevant Council(s) with a response when this has been completed.  

Page 14



Appendix 1 
 

In order to assist outside agencies and for internal clarity, the table below lists 
the main functions and roles of the Joint Waste Team.  Also listed are the 
functions retained by the Cheltenham Borough, Cotswold District, Forest of 
Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. 
 

Joint Waste Team Individual Council 

Waste Collection and Disposal supervision First call customer contact for in-scope services 
(including taking orders for charged services) 

Waste collection including; residual, 
recyclable, food, garden and bulky wastes. 

Procurement of the residual waste treatment 
facility 

Administration of charged services (including 
bulky waste, garden waste and commercial 
waste) 

Billing for charged services 

Municipal waste treatment and disposal Issuing of enforcement notices and fines 

Household Recycling Centres Legal matters 

Street Cleansing Commercial Waste Collection 

Waste Transfer Abandoned Vehicles Clearance 

Sale of dry recyclables Waste & Street Cleansing Enforcement 
(including for fly-tipping and abandoned 
vehicles) 

Bring site provision Procurement of / for in-scope services 

Monitoring and Inspection Issuing of notices and fines 

Fly-Tipping Clearance  

Clinical Waste Collection  

Sharps Waste Collection & Disposal  

Waste and Street Cleansing schools 
education 

 

Internal Resource and Budget Management  

Complaints/FOI/EIA 

Monitoring / Admin of Closed Landfills 

Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy 
(with GWP input)  

 
 

Page 15



Appendix 2 
 

Process for dealing with routine press enquiries. 
 

Press Enquiry to 
JWT or partner 

, Within JWT 
Remit?  

Refer to appropriate 
Service or other 

organisation 
NO 

YES

Internal request for 
a press release 

Is press 
release or 
statement 
needed?  

Appropriate response 
agreed with relevant 

team and/or members

 

NO 

Copy to relevant
persons 

JWT (GCC) Comms 
team to disseminate 

Obtain quote from 
Chair or other JWC 
appropriate member 

 

Member quote 
required? 

YES

Finalise Text 

JWT to draft and 
share with relevant 

members and officers 

Individual partner 
Comms team to seek 

quotes and draft. 
 

.

Single 
authority 
issue? 

NO 

NO

YES 

If required, check 
with JWT and then 

disseminate    

Page 16



 

 

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

 

Overview Of Severe Weather Arrangements 

Committee Date  19 December 2013 

 

Significant 

Decision 

No 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Joint Waste Team (01823 625707; 

steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 

Main Consultees 

 

Individual Collection Authorities 

Purpose of Report The purpose of this report is to provide an overview of the severe 

weather (or other disruption) contingency arrangements put in place by 

the JWC authorities. 

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended that the Committee: - 

Note and comment as appropriate on the overview of arrangements as 

described in the report. 

Resource 

Implications 

 

 

 

The additional costs involved in responding to severe weather 

disruption fall to the contractor. In the case of Ubico, this cost is borne 

by CBC and CDC. In all instances it is everyone’s interest to recover 

from the disruption as quickly as safely possible. 

Such disruption places pressure impacts on customer contact centres 

and the client and communications teams and this may displace other 

work and /or reduce response times. This impact is usually intense but 

short. If responses to events are managed effectively, so the impact on 

all concerned is shortened.    

While a degree of disruption in such circumstances will be accepted by 

the majority of residents, there are reputational risks to the JWC 

authorities if responses are seen to be unnecessarily delayed or 

protracted and/or if communication is unclear or inconsistent. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



1. Background 
  
(a) In January 2013 Gloucestershire experienced a spell of significant snowfall which 

caused disruption to Waste & Recycling collection services in Cotswold District, 
Cheltenham Borough and Forest of Dean areas. 

  
(b) Following the event a review was commissioned by the collection authorities to 

understand the issues surrounding how and why certain decisions were made and 
what lessons could be learnt in preparation for future spells of severe weather or 
similar disruption.  Officers from the Joint Waste Team have been supporting the 
Councils to conduct individual reviews and develop some general principles in the 
event of future disruption.  

  
(c) Each authority has differences in collection methodologies, vehicle configurations, 

tipping points, population density and/or topography. The magnitude and impact of 
disruptive weather events is also likely to be different across the county.   

  
(d) Severe weather disruption is therefore likely to affect collection services in different 

ways. These factors together will mean that the impact on residents may vary not 
only from district to district but also from round to round and day to day. Active 
response plans will therefore inevitably vary from council to council. It is however 
possible to ensure that basic principles are established in advance which aim to 
communicate consistently and minimise disruption.  

  
(e)  This report summarises the policies now in place for the JWC partners.   

 
  
2. General Principles - Collection 
  
(a) The following principles summarise the general common approach and policies for 

Cheltenham, Cotswold and Forest of Dean – the precise and detailed wording of 
the principles as expressed below may vary from partner to partner.  Detailed 
policies are included as appendices.  

  
 i. Guidelines for residents about what to do and expect in the event of snow 

and ice disrupting waste and recycling collection services will be available 
in advance of the winter and highlighted in the event of likely or actual 
event. 
 

 ii. Conditions will be assessed as early as possible on each morning of 
disruption in consultation with the contractors. Details of decisions taken will 
be publicised as soon as possible to call centres, staff, members, website 
editors and local press and media. 
  

 iii. Collections will be made on the scheduled collection day if they are 
accessible and it is safe to do so. 
 

 iv. If collections are missed, a catch up plan will be put in place so that crews 
will return as soon as conditions improve. The crews will work late and on 
Saturdays to operate the catch up plan.  
 

 v. On catch up priority will be given to refuse collections  
 
 

Page 18



 vi. Garden waste services may be suspended in order to use the resource to 
catch up with refuse collections   
 

 vii. Some restrictions – such as no side waste policies – will be suspended 
allowing resident who have missed a collection to place out extra refuse 
sacks for when collection is possible 
 

 viii. Updates will be publicised at least daily using websites as well as local and 
social media  

  
 

3.  General Principles – Recycling Centres 
  
(a) The impact of weather on Recycling Centres including safety of access roads and 

walkways, will be assessed daily prior to opening. Centres will open as soon as 
possible (eg after snow is cleared, gritted as appropriate and assessed as 
sufficiently safe for staff and public access).   

  
(b) Updates will be publicised at least daily using websites as well as local and social 

media. 
  
(c) Residents will be directed to Recycling Centres as an alternative if they are unable 

or reluctant to wait for the next collection of black bag waste or recycling.  
 

  
4. Communications  
  
(a) As noted above, each partner will have detailed messages to residents as events 

unfold. However there are advantages in establishing and communicating 
consistent basic messages across the JWC partners.  

  
(b) A meeting of lead communication personnel from each authority has therefore 

been arranged at the beginning of November with the aim of agreeing a common 
communications strategy which can be used across the JWC partners. This action 
is being facilitated by the Joint Waste Team. Other GWP partners are welcome to 
be included if they have adopted or are about to adopt similar principles. 

  
(c) Other GWP partners are welcome to be included if they have adopted or are about 

to adopt similar principles. 
  

 
5.  Status of Process Approval by Partner Authorities  
  
(a)  Cheltenham BC 

The new CBC emergency collection policy which includes the detailed prescribed 
actions is drafted and will shortly be submitted for approval by the Cabinet Lead. 

  
(b) Cotswold DC  

CDC’s emergency waste collection policy has been updated and has had Cabinet 
approval from the Portfolio Holder  

  
(c) Forest of Dean 

FODDC’s policies have been approved 
  

Page 19



(d) Gloucestershire County Council  
There have been no major issues with or changes to the Recycling Centre policies 
but, like the others above, these will remain open to review following any further 
events.  

  
6.  Further Information  
  
(a) Detailed policies are available on each partner’s website (for CBC these will be 

added shortly after final approval). A signpost to the appropriate links will be 
placed on the Recycle for Gloucestershire website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



 

 

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

Member and Public Questions Protocol 

 

Committee Date  Tuesday 19 December 2013 

 
 

Responsible 

Officers 

Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Adviser, Gloucestershire 

County Council (01452 425505; jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk;   

Purpose of Report At the Gloucestershire County Council Constitution Committee meeting 

on 7 October 2013, members requested that the Joint Waste 

Committee consider allowing public and elected member questions at 

future committee meetings.  

This request was further reinforced by questions submitted to the 

Gloucestershire County Council Cabinet meeting on 23 October 2013, 

enquiring into the arrangements for allowing public and member 

questions at Joint Waste Committee meetings.  

Adapted from the process for considering questions at Gloucestershire 

County Council Cabinet meetings, the attached protocol is submitted 

for consideration of allowing member and public questions at future 

meetings of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee.  

Recommendations  The committee to: -   

a) Consider the recommendations from the Gloucestershire County 

Council Constitution Committee,   

b) Adopt a Member and Public Question Protocol for the 

consideration of member and public questions at Joint Waste 

Committee meetings. 

Background 

documents 

The following documents are published on the Gloucestershire County 

Council website and can be viewed at the following links: -  

a) Gloucestershire County Council Constitution Committee meeting 

on 7 October 2013 –  

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/g7437/Printed%20minutes%

2007th-Oct-2013%2015.00%20Constitution%20Committee.pdf?T=1  

b) Gloucestershire County Council Cabinet (questions and 

answers) meeting on 23 October 2013 – 

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/b9529/Questions%20at%20

Cabinet%20Meeting%2023rd-Oct-2013%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=9  

 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



 

Page 22



 

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee  

 

Member and Public Questions  

 

1. Questions at Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee Meetings  

 

At each meeting of the Joint Waste Committee, there will be a period of up to 30 

minutes for the committee to consider written and oral questions. The length of 

the question time will be no more than 30 minutes in total. 

 

An elected member, or any person who lives or works in the county, may submit 

a written question on any matter which relates to an item on the Joint Waste 

Committee agenda for that meeting.  

 

A written copy of the question must have been submitted to Democratic Services 

at Shire Hall, Gloucester by 6.00 pm three clear working days before the date of 

the meeting. 

 

At the Chairman’s invitation, an elected member, or any person who lives or 

works in the county, may ask oral questions about any matter on the agenda for 

that meeting, provided he or she gives notice of the question to Democratic 

Services at Shire Hall, Gloucester at least 30 minutes prior to the start of the 

meeting.  

 

2. Response  

 

A written answer will be provided to a written question and will be given to the 

questioner and to the committee before being read out at the meeting by the 

Chairman for the meeting.  

 

If the person who submitted the question agrees, the answer need not be read 

out. If the person who submitted the question is not present, the Chairman may 

decide whether or not the answer shall be read out. 

 

A copy of all written questions and answers circulated at the meeting will be 

attached to the signed copy of the minutes of the meeting. 

 

3. Supplementary Questions 

 

A person who has put a written question may, with the consent of the Chairman, 

as a supplementary question on the same subject as the original question. 

 

 

 

Page 23



An answer to a supplementary question will take the form of: -  

  

a) A direct oral question;   

 

b) Where the information required is contained in a council document or other 

published work, the questioner will be given the name of that document, and if 

the Chairman considers it appropriate, the relevant part of the document will 

be read out;  

 

c) If the information required is not easily available, a written answer will be sent 

to the questioner and circulated to members of the committee. 

 

4. General  

 

All questions must be directed through the Chairman;   

 

There will be no discussion on any question from members of the public;  

 

Written questions may be rejected and oral questions need not be answered if 

the Chairman considers that they are: -  

 

a) Defamatory, frivolous or offensive;  

 

b) Substantially the same that as a question that has been put to the committee 

in the past six months; or  

 

c) Required the disclosure of confidential or exempt information 

 

In every case, the Chairman must specify the reason for rejecting a question or 

not requiring an answer to be given.  

 

If the Chairman decides not to allow a further question and has given reasons for 

the decision, then the decision shall be final. An issue will not be deferred if 

someone is unable to attend the meeting. 

 

All decisions will be at the Chairman’s discretion.  

 

 

 

December 2013 

 

Page 24



 

 

 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

Draft Business Plan 2014-17 

 

Committee Date  Tuesday 19 December 2013 

 
 

Responsible 

Officers 

Steve Read, Head of Service, Gloucestershire Joint Waste Team 

(01823 625707; steve.read@gloucestershire.gov.uk);  

 

Purpose of Report This report outlines the key priorities and actions of the Draft Business 

Plan for the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee, (GJWC), for the 

period 2014 to 2017.   

The purpose of the business plan is to provide a mandate for the 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee, (Cheltenham Borough 

Council, Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council and 

Gloucestershire County Council), from which to make decisions in 

accordance with set governance and budgetary principles without 

having to consult the other partner authorities. 

Appendices Appendix 1 – Draft Action Plan (19 December 2013) 

Recommendation  To note the Draft Business Plan 2014-17 and make any final 

comments prior to adoption. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

1 

Title Page 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
 

Business Plan 
Covering the period 

2014-17 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version for Approval JWC 19 December 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 27



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

2 

Executive Summary 
 

Introduction 

This is the second business plan of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 
(GJWC) formed between Cheltenham Borough Council, Cotswold District Council, 
Forest of Dean District Council and Gloucestershire County Council. It outlines key 
priorities and actions for the next three years.  The critical purpose of this plan is to 
provide a mandate for the GJWC to consider and make decisions, according to set 
governance and budgetary principles, without constant reference back to the partner 
authorities. 
 

 

Rationale for Joint Working 

Over the last two decades, the roles of waste collection authorities (district councils) 
have become more complex and interdependent on the roles of county councils as 
waste disposal authority and vice-versa. There has also been growing interest in 
sharing services across district boundaries to benefit from economies of scale. 
 
The GJWC is a body with delegated powers to make decisions concerning the 
recycling, waste collection and street cleansing services for three district and borough 
councils and to deliver waste treatment and disposal for the County. 

 

The GJWC Aims to: 

• Save money and minimise future costs, with a fair distribution of savings 
between partners and their council tax payers; 

• Provide good customer service and improve it further within the bounds of the 
resources available;   

• Undertake operations in an environmentally sustainable manner by following the 
waste hierarchy and, where practical and affordable, sending materials collected 
to the most appropriate end destination. 

• Identify and share initiatives and best practice amongst partner Authorities 

 

Short and long term 

The plan acknowledges that the major financial benefits of joint working will occur in the 
longer term but the partnership can make short term benefits as well as positioning 
itself to deliver more significant savings down the line, particularly at times of major 
change. 

Relationship with the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) and 
other Collection Authorities  
 
The formation of the GJWC is in line with the JMWMS (albeit three Gloucestershire 
authorities mentioned below have resolved not to join the GJWC at inception). This 

Page 28



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

business plan will, however, contribute to the delivery of JMWMS objectives by the four 
GJWC authorities. 
 
Under the JMWMS, each GWP member produces an annual action plan that sets out 
the key waste management actions the authority will undertake in implementing the 
strategy.   
 
The action plan included within this business plan at Appendix 1 will replace the 
individual action plans for the GJWC Partner Authorities and will sit under the JMWMS 
alongside the action plans for Gloucester City Council, Stroud District Council and 
Tewkesbury Borough Council. 

 

Joint Waste Team 

The GJWC will be served by a Joint Waste Team (JWT) whose principal role is to 
specify, plan, procure (where authorised by the GJWC and budget holding authority(s)), 
monitor, co-ordinate and improve the delivery of services to householders, delivered by 
a number of service providers and in-house teams. 

 

Budget Principles 

The GWJC Constitution requires that any matter that has an impact on any partner’s 
financial standing or service provision may only proceed with the express agreement of 
the partner(s) concerned. 
 
Initially the contractual element of budgets (which is the large majority) will continue to 
be held by individual partners but managed by the JWT. 

 
 

Actions 

A full action plan identifying accountable officers and timescales is included as an 
Appendix to the Plan.  
 
These actions are listed in categories including: Waste Minimisation and High Diversion 
and High Capture, Contract Reviews, Food Waste Treatment, Alternative Collections 
Models, Improved Customer Service and Recycling Centre Options.  
 
Many of the initiatives affect either all or a subset of the partners, indicating the shift 
towards the desired cultural change. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

1. Introduction 

1.1. Background to Joint Decision Making 

 Local authorities are complex entities, exercising a range of powers and requiring a 
large number of both key and day to day decisions across the wide range of 
services they are responsible for. 
 
Major decisions regarding the strategic and budgetary framework of an authority 
are usually taken at Full Council meetings.  However so that they can function 
effectively, the law allows local authorities to formally delegate powers and decision 
making; either to individuals or to committees.  This is partly to manage the 
workload and also to allow individuals or committees with particular expertise to 
consider matters in detail before making decisions. 
 
A Joint Committee allows two or more local authorities to delegate powers and 
decision making (within an agreed framework and continuing accountability) to a 
single decision making body where there are benefits to all parties from doing so. 

1.2. Joint Working and Decision Making in Recycling and Waste 

 There are particular benefits from joint working in recycling and waste management 
in two tier areas as, increasingly over the last two decades, the roles of waste 
collection authorities (district councils) have become more complex and 
interdependent on the roles of county councils as waste disposal authority and vice-
versa. There has also been growing interest in sharing services across district 
boundaries. 

1.3. Formation of the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee (GJWC) 

 GJWC has therefore been formed under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972 to oversee recycling, waste collection and street cleansing services for three 
district and borough councils and to deliver waste treatment and disposal for the 
County. 
 
The partnership comprises the following authorities: 
 

• Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC); 

• Cotswold District Council (CDC); 

• Forest of Dean District Council (FoDDC);  

• Gloucestershire County Council (GCC). 

 
The agreed framework for the GJWC is an Inter Authority Agreement (IAA) signed 
in March 2013 whereby the four authorities named above have delegated their 
powers in relation to waste collection and disposal and street cleansing to the 
GJWC. The IAA contains a Constitution that specifies how the partnership is 
governed. 

 The GJWC comprises of two Members from each authority on a ‘one Member, one 
vote’ basis. The GJWC will meet formally in public session on a quarterly basis with 
informal meetings, workshops and visits taking place as required between formal 

Page 30



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

meetings. Chairman Cllr Martin Quaile and Vice Chairman Cllr Roger Whyborn 
were elected at the first meeting and elections will be held annually at an AGM. 
Membership of the GJWC is listed at Appendix 2 and further details on GJWC 
governance can be found within the Constitution. 
 
The GJWC directs a Joint Waste Management Unit (JWMU) (Section 3), known as 
the Joint Waste Team (JWT) led by a Head of Service who reports directly to the 
Joint Committee and has, in turn, functions and powers delegated to it by the 
GJWC. The Head of Service maintains close strategic and operational links with the 
Partner Authorities through a director-level Strategic Management Group (SMG). 
The GJWC is ‘hosted’ by Gloucestershire County Council acting as Administering 
Authority. The roles of the Administering Authority and SMG are set out in the IAA. 

1.4. Purpose of this Business Plan 

 This business plan is a requirement under the Inter Authority Agreement and allows 
the partners to agree on key priorities and actions for the next three years. 
Inevitably there is more certainty about the short term than the long, so the 
business plan has a particular focus on activities in 2014/15. 
The critical purpose of this plan is to provide a mandate for the GJWC to consider 
and make decisions, according to the governance and budgetary principles, without 
constant reference back to the partner authorities. 

 
 

2. The Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee 

2.1. Purpose of the GJWC 

 The GJWC will: 
 

Provide a shared decision making body to improve services and deliver 
savings.  

• Facilitate whole system thinking to reinforce quality of decision making from 
customer, financial and resource efficiency points of view. 

 

2.2. Vision of the GJWC 

 In June 2011 the emerging partners agreed a joint vision which aspired to the 
formation of a partnership to achieve a number of aims including;   

• working together in partnership to deliver more efficient waste services 
• to consider waste collection and disposal as a single system provided for the 

council tax payers of Gloucestershire 

• Governance by a Joint Waste Committee with delegated powers to act in the 
area of waste disposal and collection with representatives from each of the 
participating District and the County Councils  

• Formation of a Joint Waste Management Unit (JWMU) responsible for 
o Delivering on Business Plan actions and any further resolutions 
o managing existing external waste contracts,  

• Having safeguards in place to ensure that the Districts and the County retain 
decision-making on significant budgetary and service change matters 

• Maintaining existing customer contact arrangements  

Page 31



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

• Managing within a common strategy with the goal of achieving the most 
efficient waste service 

• Planning across district and borough boundaries, optimising depot and 
transfer stations infrastructure and the use and purchase of resources such 
as vehicles  

With the main components now in place the JWC’s objectives are more outcome rather 
than organisationally focused: In 2014/15 the JWC’s vision and intention is to:   
  

• Drive material up the waste hierarchy and, where sustainable markets exist, into 
the circular economy*. 

• Avoid landfill and encourage high participation in waste avoidance, reuse, 
recycling and food waste collection schemes.  

• Engage with local people, support economic wellbeing and use efficient, 
sustainable and affordable solutions at every stage of the process.  

• Encourage and facilitate innovation, joined up strategy, policy and operations 
across the county, continuing to encourage all Gloucestershire councils to join 
the partnership.  

 
*see para 4.4 for more information about the circular economy  

 

2.3. Key Principles Regarding Financial Control and Service Provision  

 The Constitution facilitates joint working while reserving that any matter that has an 
impact on any partner’s financial standing or service provision (for example: 
frequency of collections or Recycling Centre opening hours) may only proceed with 
the express agreement of the partner(s) concerned. Other budgetary principles are 
described in para 7.1 below. 

2.4. Principal Aims of GJWC 

 • To save money and minimise future costs, with a fair distribution of savings 
between partners and their council tax payers; 

• To provide good customer service; and improve it further within the bounds 
of the resources available;   

• To undertake operations in an environmentally sustainable manner by 
following the waste hierarchy and, where practical and affordable, sending 
materials collected to the most appropriate end destination. 

• To identify and share initiatives and best practice amongst partner 
Authorities 

 

3. The Joint Waste Team (JWT) 

3.1.  Overview of the JWT 

 The JWT is the dedicated officer support to the GJWC. The GJWC can delegate 
defined functions to a designated Head of Service and his/her team. The 
advantages of this include: 
 

Page 32



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

• The Head of Service and JWT have an overview of the business as a 
whole and can give impartial advice to the GJWC as to how to meet the 
overall vision and aims.   

• The creation of a single service management team provides an opportunity 
to rationalise processes and deliver cost savings; 

• Co-ordinated decision making between disposal and collection authorities 
generally results in more rational outcomes; 

• A senior management team with both general and specialist expertise is 
more affordable when jointly funded by a group of authorities, leaving the 
team better placed to deliver the partner authorities’ desired service 
outcomes. This will assist the partnership to make faster progress towards 
higher recycling performance and avoided expenditure in the total cost of 
treatment and disposal. 

3.2. What the Joint Waste Team does 

 The principal role of the Joint Waste Team is, under the oversight of the GJWC, to 
specify, plan, procure, monitor, co-ordinate and improve the delivery of services to 
householders, delivered by a number of service providers and in house teams.  
These services are listed below at para 3.3.1 
 
The JWT acts as a single source of expertise with an overview of: 
 

• customer needs (day to day problems, long term aspirations)  

• each partners’ own priorities, aspirations and budget 

• the capacity of service providers to deliver and improve 

• what is happening at a Government and industry-wide level    

 
The clear benefit of doing this in a joined up way is that those with democratic 
accountability can be sure that the system is being managed as a whole in the 
most effective and efficient way.  It can also identify clear, overarching goals and 
ensure that policies adopted and services delivered by any one partner support 
the overall objectives and do not have an adverse impact on any other. 

3.3. Services Provided 

3.3.1. The Partner Authorities have delegated responsibility for the following service 
areas to the GJWC: 
 

• Household residual waste, dry recycling and organics collection; 

• Local Authority Collected Waste transfer, treatment and disposal; 

• Bring sites; 

• Household Recycling Centres (HRCs); 

• Bulky household waste collection; 

• Commercial waste collection (where offered);  

Page 33



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

• Street cleansing;  

• Fly tipping and abandoned vehicle clearance; 

• Waste and street cleansing PR, marketing and community engagement 
(including with schools). 

• Medical sharps and clinical waste collection and disposal; 

3.3.2. The public-facing services (involving the transfer of materials from householders 
or businesses to an end destination) are carried out through service providers 
such as Biffa, Cory, Kier MG and Ubico. The role of the JWT includes:  
 

• Developing and holding the “big picture” and ensuring that strategy, 
operations, customer service and information are aligned or are becoming 
aligned to the GJWC’s objectives. 

• Ensuring that contract activities are carried out safely in accordance with 
specifications and that the service providers are paid accordingly. 

• Representing the customers’ interest and provide information to them 
through appropriate and diverse media. 

• Representing the partners’ interest and future aspirations via the GJWC 
and through attendance at individual partner meetings. 

• Ensuring that as far as possible materials available within the waste stream 
are collected in the most appropriate way and sent to the most appropriate 
end destination. 

• Planning for future development of services and procurement. 

3.4. How the JWT is structured 

3.4.1 The JWT is staffed by professionals most of whom previously reported through 
the structures of the individual partners. The existing team structures were 
retained at commencement but some staff have since been deployed in different 
roles and some tasks have been redistributed. It is proposed to review the 
structure more fundamentally during 2014.  

3.4.2 The GJWC has appointed an experienced officer as Head of Service on a part 
time basis, initially through a contract for services arrangement, with the Somerset 
Waste Partnership (SWP). This arrangement brings wider potential benefits as the 
two units can share experience, opportunities and costs to jointly tackle common 
interests. 

3.4.3 The JWT is structured so that each partner has a designated officer as their main 
contact point for local operational issues. Each member of the team also 
contributes to more strategic, cross-cutting issues so that the whole partnership 
draws benefit from the wide range of skills and experience available.   

3.4.4 Staff within the JWT are developing a broader understanding of the whole system 
and issues affecting each of the council areas jointly and individually.  This 
ensures that key messages are consistent and helps build resilience within the 
overall service so that effective clienting on behalf of any given partner is not 
completely dependent on the staff it transferred. 

Page 34



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

3.4.5 The Head of Service will undertake a review of workload and resources on the 
basis of experience of the first few months of operation, and report to the Strategic 
Management Group on the findings (Action 7.6). The aim of this exercise is to 
determine if the resources transferred to the JWT are appropriately balanced in 
relation to the functions delegated by the partners versus those retained by 
service providers.  

3.5. How the JWT delivers the objectives. 

3.5.1. Having established the GJWC and the JWT, the partnership is now in a position to 
derive maximum benefit through added economies of scale.  
 
The greatest scope to achieve the partners’ key aims above occurs at key 
moments of change. Usually the greatest opportunity to introduce large step 
changes in service delivery, performance and efficiency comes at the point of 
contract or fleet/infrastructure renewal.  
 
One opportunity for this falls in the run up to 2018 when Forest of Dean’s current 
collection contract expires. Others will occur if Tewkesbury BC, Stroud DC and/or 
Gloucester City join the partnership. Stroud DC’s Multi Services Contract is due 
for renewal in 2016.  

3.5.2. There is however scope for more effective joined up working in the interim period; 
for example by reviewing contracts ensuring they deliver value for money.  The 
Action Plan (Appendix 1) sets out a number of areas where short term progress 
can be made. 

3.5.3. In the longer term, other opportunities for cost saving and service improvement 
include:  

• Optimisation of waste depots, transfer stations and treatment facilities to better 
meet the needs of a partnership generally allows some facilities to be shared 
and others released thus reducing total service costs;  

• Re-configuration of facilities allows waste to be bulked for onward transfer and 
vehicles to park-up at the same site. This reduces total miles travelled by 
collection vehicles and maximises the productive use of operatives’ working 
time; 

• Fleet savings are achieved through improved procurement, a more rational 
approach to capital financing and reduced maintenance and vehicle cover 
requirements; 

• Significant savings arise from increased productivity when serving a larger 
geographical area, for example in Somerset some rounds cover more than 
one district and some specialist vehicles are shared between different depots. 

• A migration over time towards a harmonised service design will bring benefits 
to both Waste Disposal Authority (WDA) and Waste Collection Authority 
(WCA) functions: 

§ Large and simple contracts resulting in a better market response and 
reduced prices; 

§ more consistent waste streams and simplified contract and service 
management; 

Page 35



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

§ Streamlined customer support and greater opportunities for automation 
and self service; and 

§ Reduced costs of communication and consultation through simplified 
messages and common objectives. 

• Concerns over loss of control by individual partners are mitigated by  

§ Membership of the Joint Waste Committee 

§ Continued accountability to each partner 

§ Reservation over key issues as defined in paragraph 2.3 

4. The Operating Environment 

4.1. There are many things that have an impact on services that are not under the 
control of the JWC, JWT or the partners.  Recycling and waste management is a 
statutory, demand-led service with a high proportion of fixed costs due to 
contractual or tax requirements. There is however some variability particularly 
around waste tonnages and the mix of materials recovered. These variable costs 
can be influenced by macro economic effects such as the recession, government 
policy such as the landfill tax escalator and social behaviour such as the degree of 
participation in recycling schemes. 

4.2. There is always a degree of uncertainty about how such external factors will impact 
and interplay. We can however identify those issues that might have an impact on 
the business in the future.  The business environment in this period is expected to 
be characterised to a greater or lesser extent by the following:- 

4.3. Political / Economic 
 

• Ongoing challenges to public bodies to meet the budget deficit.  

• Increasing fuel prices. 

• Increasing interest in opportunities for renewable energy recovery from waste 
streams. 

• The Government announced in November 2013 that the Defra waste team is 
being scaled back suggesting  that further significant policy changes are unlikely 
or at least unlikely to be driven by Defra. 

• The period of this plan is likely to see continuing constraints for the public purse.  
At the same time there are signs that the economy is growing again, and where 
there is economic growth there tends to be a growth in waste. This presents a 
clear scenario where we will need to do more with less. 

• There are indications regionally and nationally  that, after a decade or more of 
decline in waste arisings, the decline has reached a plateau and may even be 
increasing in some areas  

• As indicated above, and based on recent precedent, central government is 
unlikely to support further step change  initiatives, such as introducing “pay to 
throw” models, or reduced frequency collections (The Secretary of State at 
DCLG continues to have strong views about frequency of refuse collections).  
Despite austerity there continues to be clear public expectation of continuing high 
quality household waste services.  In such a context finding solutions to issues 

Page 36



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

presented by budgetary challenges will be difficult. 

 

4.4. Technical developments and the circular economy 

 • Currently all residual waste is sent to landfill under a contract with Cory 
Environmental Ltd.   An application for an energy from waste facility at Javelin 
Park, operated by Urbaser Balfour Beatty to treat residual waste was refused by 
Gloucestershire County Council’s Planning Committee on 21 March 2013. The 
decision was appealed by UBB and a public enquiry commenced in November 
2013. The inspector is expected to make recommendations to the Secretary for 
State in Spring 2014, The outcome of this is not expected to be known until the 
Summer of 2014.  

 

• The Joint Waste Committee will be updated on any further developments at 
meetings as required. This project is retained by GCC and is therefore not within 
the GJWC remit however the potential future role of the JWC is outlined in para 
6.2.  

 

• One aspiration of the JWC is to drive material up the waste hierarchy and, 
where sustainable markets exist, into the circular economy. The circular 
economy is one where resources once used are not disposed of, but become 
feedstock materials or energy for making new products, thus reducing reliance 
on raw materials and waste disposal.  A “closed loop process” is a variation of 
this where recovered materials are recycled into the same product. The benefits 
of a circular economy include reduced energy consumption, resource security 
and lower environmental impacts. A circular economy works most effectively 
where there are clear incentives for all persons on the loop (manufacturers, 
retailers, consumers, local authorities, reprocessors) to move the material 
around the loop. 

 

• As a result of this and other economic factors there will continue to be pressure 
through higher targets and other developments for manufacturers and retailers 
to take on more producer responsibility for the consequences of their products 
and/or packaging at the end of its life. This may mean more money flows back 
to front line collection systems or, conversely, that retailers and/or others 
cherry-pick the more lucrative recycling streams making collection of the rest 
even more expensive for local authorities. 

 

• A corresponding pressure from industry for a higher quality of material collected 
by local authorities is creating pressure for improvements in the ability of 
material reprocessors to sort and grade household recyclate. 

4.5. Social impacts 

 • Over the coming years the average age of the population will continue to rise 
and nationally service providers such as the GJWC will need to ensure that 
collection, recycling and disposal methods are able to accommodate the needs 
of an ageing population. 

Page 37



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

• The aging population, planning policies and land availability will result in higher 
density housing and this will have an impact on collection methods, particularly if 
there are insufficient storage areas for collection receptacles or streets are too 
narrow for collection vehicle movements.  This challenge must be mitigated 
through dialogue with highways and planners and the refresh and relaunch of 
planning guidance.  

• Increasing expectations from some residents to recycle a wider variety of 
materials. This is good but may have cost and/or quality implications in relation 
to the material collected. 

• A growing sector of the population for whom recycling may be a lower priority 
than previously due to austerity.  Encouragement to residents in this position 
may be increasingly challenging.  

• Continuing expectations that despite budget pressures LAs will intervene and 
resolve problems caused by anti-social behaviour such as fly tipping and the 
incorrect presentation of waste. 

• Waste analysis however shows that a significant amount of recyclable waste 
continues to be disposed of with household refuse.   

 

• In such circumstances our priorities must centre on working with residents to 
increase participation and capture rates of material and a number of high priority 
initiatives within the action plan support this objective. 

 

4.6. Environmental impacts including extreme weather 

• Increasing expectations and legislative pressure to minimise carbon impacts 
from activities such as emissions from vehicles and material processing 

• Good practice to promote transparency in terms of what happens to material 
collected for processing or disposal 

• Increased episodes of disruption to services caused by the consequences of 
extreme winter weather (snow, flooding etc). These can be mitigated by 
advanced planning, prepared catch up strategies and pre-publication of advice 
to householders in anticipation.  

 
 

5. Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) 

5.1. JMWMS and the Relationship with GWP 

 In 2008 all seven Gloucestershire authorities adopted the Gloucestershire Waste 
Partnership (GWP) Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy (JMWMS) which 
set out the vision and a route map for managing waste in the county up to 2020. 
 
The main objectives of the JMWMS are based upon a hierarchy of preferred 
approaches, focusing on waste prevention and reduction, recycling and composting 
more, and treating the remaining waste in a more sustainable way. The strategy 
includes an objective to “develop an effective partnership between the seven 
Gloucestershire authorities and investigate the formation of a suitable organisational 
framework, including financial and operational interests, for delivering the strategy”. 

Page 38



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

 
The formation of the GJWC is therefore in line with the JMWMS (albeit three of the 
GWP authorities, Gloucester City Council, Stroud District Council and Tewkesbury 
Borough Council, did not to join the GJWC at inception. This business plan will, 
however, contribute to the delivery of JMWMS objectives by the authorities 
concerned. 
 
Under the JMWMS, each GWP member produces an annual action plan that sets 
out the key waste management actions the authority will undertake in implementing 
the strategy.   
 
The action plan included within this business plan at Appendix 1 will replace the 
individual action plans for the GJWC Partner Authorities and will sit under the 
JMWMS alongside the action plans for Gloucester City Council, Stroud District 
Council and Tewkesbury Borough Council. 

 

5.2. JMWMS Objectives and Targets 

 Section 5.2 and 5.3 of the JMWMS sets out the objectives and associated targets 
agreed by the GWP: 

Objective 1: “Changing Behaviour” 

To further develop our service design, communications and our education 
programmes to promote waste minimisation and to maximise participation in 
sustainable waste management services. In the long term we aim to transform 
consumer behaviour and society’s attitude to consumption and disposal. 
 
Target (T1) - By 2020:  
 

• Achieve an average participation rate of 80% in recycling & composting 
collection schemes; 

• Achieve an average capture rate of 80% for targeted recyclable and 
compostable materials. 

 

Objective 2: “Reduction First” 

To reduce Gloucestershire’s municipal waste by addressing waste generation at the 
household level and further up the supply chain. 
 
Target (T2): 
 

• To reduce the growth of Gloucestershire’s municipal waste arisings to zero by 
2020. 

 

Objective 3: “Segregation at Source” 

To provide collection systems that enable all householders to segregate their waste, 
balancing optimised collection systems with a desire to maintain the quality and 
value of the materials collected for recycling and composting. 
 

Page 39



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

 
Objective 4: “Compost Hierarchy” 

To promote home and community composting where possible, and also provide 
facilities to compost biowaste that is collected at the kerbside and received at HRCs. 
We aim to produce high quality composts that can be used locally. 
 
Target (T3): 
 

Minimum county-wide improvement targets have been set as follows: 

Year Recycling & Composting 
Target 

Residual waste per 
capita target 

2014/15 50% 273kg 

2019/20 60% 228kg 

(Links to Objective 3) 

In addition to the above targets the County Council has an aspiration to achieve a 
recycling and composting rate of 70% by 2030 although this has not been agreed by 
the GWP as a formal target. 

 Objective 5: “Residual Waste as a Resource” 

To provide residual waste treatment capacity to divert waste from landfill, and find or 
develop markets for recovered materials. Our preferred treatment processes will 
optimise recovery of recyclables and gain further value from residual waste before 
disposal. 
Target (T4): Reduce the amount of active biodegradable waste from landfill at least 
in line with the requirements of the Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme to: 

 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Tonnes 71,555 68,486 65,416 62,347 59,277 56,208 53,139 50,069 

(Links to Objective 3, and 4) 

 

Objective 6: “Delivering the Strategy” 

To implement this Strategy through clear leadership, accountable decision-making, 
timely investment and resourcing. We will look to secure sustainable funding to 
continuously improve Gloucestershire’s waste management service. 
 

Objective 7: “Working in Partnership” 

To develop an effective partnership between the seven Gloucestershire authorities 
and investigate the formation of a suitable organisational framework, including 
financial and operational interests, for delivering this Strategy. We plan to develop 
strong partnerships with the Waste Planning Authority, businesses, community 
groups and other organisations to ensure effective management of the municipal 
waste stream. 
 

Objective 8: “Closing the Resource Loop” 

To reprocess waste material at the most appropriate location; recycling locally 
wherever practical and economic by supporting reprocessors within Gloucestershire. 

Page 40



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

However it is acknowledged that markets are national and international and benefit 
from economies of scale. So local reprocessing capacity for many materials is often 
not necessary or economic.  We will, however, seek to ensure that our waste 
materials are recycled into high quality products, helping to generate jobs, create 
wealth, and mitigate the impact of climate change. 
 

Objective 9: “Depollution of the Waste Stream” 

To encourage the reduction of hazardous waste arisings, and to segregate and 
safely treat or dispose of hazardous materials from the municipal waste stream. 

5.3. Targets 

 Tables 1 and 2 below propose key performance indicators and annual targets for the 
business plan period. 
Table 1:  

% Recycling 
& Composting 
  

Current Year 2014/15 

Target Forecast Variance Target 

Cheltenham 46 45% -1.2% 46 

Cotswold 60 57% -2.9% 61 

Forest of Dean 48 48% 0.1% 49 

Gloucester 50 37% -13.3% 50 

Stroud 31 31% -0.4% 40 

Tewkesbury 54 52% -2.0% 54 

HRCs 68 65% -2.9% 70 

County total 51.5 48% -3.7% 53.1 

 
Table 2: 
Kg residual 
waste per 
household 
  

Current Year 2014/15 

Target Forecast Variance Target 

Cheltenham 465 473 +8 464 

Cotswold 365 391 +26 354 

Forest of Dean 415 424 +9 410 

Gloucester 397 499 +102 393 

Stroud 488 497 +9 422 

Tewkesbury 384 403 +19 381 

HRCs 53 57 +4 50 

County total 472 512 +40 457 

 
 

6. Priorities 

6.1. This business plan and has a three year horizon. The main emphasis has been on 
setting up and bedding in the GJWC and the JWT for the first 12 months. There is 
now the opportunity to look beyond three years. The periods can be summarised 
as follows:- 

Page 41



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

   

• 2014/15 – Investigate and work with partners to deliver increased recycling and 
waste diversion strategies and opportunities especially regarding the collection 
of cardboard and plastics. Complete the procurement of the new food waste 
treatment contract and embed the new contract operationally. Deliver short term 
savings and efficiencies in existing contractual arrangements and review 
alternative collection models.  

• Encourage Tewkesbury, Stroud and Gloucester City to join the partnership  

• Review the Joint Municipal Waste Management  

• 2015/16 - Prepare for future joint procurement opportunities, taking into account 
the opportunities for optimisation across the county. 

• Investigate opportunities to develop in-county Material Recovery Facility (MRF) 
and a reuse centre at the new Hempsted HRC.  

• 2018-19+ – Transition to more efficient joint collection arrangements and, if 
required, delivery of infrastructure identified. 

6.2. Priorities for 2014/15: 

 • Manage changes already identified by the partners, and where possible deliver 
additional “quick win” savings. 

• Ensure a successful replacement contract for the treatment of food waste is 
delivered on time and is embedded without affecting collection services. 

• Review the information derived from the WRAP customer barriers work and use 
it to review and deliver a range of waste diversion and high diversion/capture 
strategies.   

• Ensure that the effort and benefit of work undertaken to improve services and 
reduce costs which impact on more than one partner by districts is shared (see 
areas shaded yellow in the joint Action Plan at Appendix 1) 

• Highlight the benefits of joint working to encourage the other Gloucestershire 
Districts to join the partnership at the earliest opportunity. 

• Officers from the JWT will assist Gloucestershire County Council to consider 
waste disposal options that provide an alternative to landfill. As resolved by the 
county council, the Residual Waste Working Group was set-up to advise the 
county council on the approach to managing Gloucestershire’s residual waste 
and in turn the fallback strategy in the event that the residual waste contract 
with Urbaser Balfour Beatty (UBB) to deliver energy from waste at Javelin Park, 
fails.  This will initially consist of JWT officer support for the Residual Waste 
Working Group, which is currently working to an agreed timetable continuing 
into the first half of 2014.  If the appeal is upheld, then the contract with UBB will 
continue to be managed by GCC initially. While details are still to be 
determined, it is envisaged that responsibility for operational management could 
pass to the JWC at or around commencement of construction. 

• Support Ubico in preparing a business case to appraise the opportunities for 
them undertaking material bulking and transfer from the Cheltenham depot 
when the current contract comes to an end in April 2015. 

• Welcome and integrate members and officers and processes of any council 

Page 42



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

joining the partnership during the period   

7. The Budgetary Framework 

7.1. The Budgetary Framework is set out within the IAA, specifically Schedules 4 and 5.  
 
In future years a summary of the budget will appear within the business plan. For 
2013/14 budget summary, please refer to Schedule 4 of the IAA.  
 
The main principles are as follows: 
 

• The Constitution requires that any matter that has an impact on any partner’s 
financial standing or service provision may only proceed with the express 
agreement of the partner(s) concerned (as stated at 2.3 above). 

• The partnership has an estimated reserve of £160k remaining to cover Head of 
Service and support costs. The reserve was envisaged to be sufficient to last 
for the first three years and thereafter these costs will be funded by the partners 
through savings.  

• The salary, expenses and local service and supply costs of transferred 
employees are covered by the transferring authority who reimburse the 
Administering Authority accordingly. 

• Contract payments and other ongoing liabilities in connection with the service 
are made by the contract holding authority upon instruction of the JWT. 

• Income received by the partner authorities for garden waste etc will be retained 
to offset contractual costs.  

• Costs which are to be shared jointly in the future will be apportioned to the 
partners in accordance with agreed formulas set out in Schedule 5 to the IAA. 
These will be indentified annually in advance in the Draft Budget accompanying 
the Business Plan. 

8. Key Actions 

 See the Action Plan at Appendix 1 for key operational and community engagement 
actions. The Action Plan identifies an officer accountable for the delivery of each 
element or project and specifies timescales and expected outcomes.  
 
These actions are listed in the following categories:  
 

• engaging with customers  

• procurement 

• infrastructure 

• service development 

• surveys and research 

• contribution to corporate initiatives 

• other projects 
 

Many of the initiatives affect either all or a subset of the partners. 

 
 

Page 43



Draft JWC Business Plan 2014-17 for JWC Approval 19 Dec 2013 

 

9. Targets and reporting 

 Currently each partner sets targets however it is proposed that the GJWC will 
consider setting targets for 2015/16 onwards.  
 

Performance will be reported to the GJWC at least twice per year: a full year 
summary of the previous financial year at the summer meeting, and a half year 
summary of the current financial year to the winter meeting. 

10. GJWC Meetings 

10.1. GJWC meetings are scheduled to be held on the following dates 
 
April 2014 
June 2014 
September 2014 
December 2014 
February 2015 
 

10.2. In addition it is proposed to hold dates for informal (non decision making) meetings 
of the GJWC annually in or around: 
 

• July (to consider future operational developments, savings opportunities 
also to arrange a “new member” briefing following any changes of GJWC 
membership after Council AGMs. 

• October (to consider budget pressures, savings opportunities). 

• November (a reserve date in case further consultation with partners is 
required after the October informal meeting). 

 

11. Risk Register 

 The initial risk register is included at Appendices 2A and 2B. 

 

12. List of Appendices 

 Appendix 1 – Action Plan 
Appendix 2A – Risk Register  
Appendix 2B – Risk Register Matrix 

 

Page 44



Appendix 1 - Action Plan - Draft version 131219

Partners Project Lead Officer Complete Expected Outcome

1. Engagement with customers

1.1 All

Engage in campaigns and activities to support waste 

minimisation and waste diversion to include doorstepping 

in low recycling participation areas and engage with 

producers of excess waste

AP/RC
April 14 to 

March 15

Support behaviour change, reduce waste and increase waste 

diversion. Aim to achieve higher participation in recycling services 

and reduce waste to landfill

1.2 All Promote recycling opprtunities using available media ML/KC
April 14 to 

March 15
Increase waste minimisation and recycling performance

1.3 CDC/CBC/FOD 
Annual calendar and carry out promotion of garden waste 

collection schemes 
SW/RC/ML

Feb-Jun 

annually

Help residents in understanding the service so that waste is put out 

on the right day and promote the availability of the service. 

1.4 CBC/CDC/FOD
Set up a project to investigate the potential to retrive non 

approved residual bins
RC/SW Autumn 14 Reducing waste to landfill

1.5 All
Raising awareness of the Love Food Hate Waste 

campaign.
AP

April 14 to 

March 15

Raise awareness of the impact of food waste on the environment 

and impact on householder behaviour to increase participation.

1.6 GCC+ CBC
Continue with the food points scheme in Hatherley area of 

Cheltenham
AP/SW Apr to Sep 

Evaluate the trial of the food points project delivered to 5500 

households in Cheltenham to help inform the future potential of 

reward schemes .

1.7 GCC Take steps to alleviate queuing at Hempsted HRC TC April to July Improved customer service

1.8 GCC
Investigate new  recycing opportunities at the Household 

Recycling Centres with KierMG
TC

April 14 to 

March 15

Investigate the opportuntities to recycling additonal materials e.g. 

carpet, rigid plastic and consider the roll out of black bag opening to 

all HRCs

1.9 GCC
Maintain and deliver the education programme delivered 

to schools and others
AP

April 14 to 

March 15

Raise awareness of issues with young people to ensure the next 

generation are aware of waste minimisation opportunities and 

engaged with recycling services

1.10 GCC
Develop and maintain the Master Composters and other 

community champion networks.
AP

April 14 to 

March 15

Build capacity within the community to encourage participation in 

recycling services

1.11 All Undertake a review of the Joint Strategy AP
April 14 to 

March 15

Project manage and work with partners to deliver a review of the 

JMWMS

1.12 FOD
Promote the bulky waste collection service and campaign 

against fly tipping
RC

April 14 to 

March 15

Work with enforcement teams to develop a project to reduce 

flytipping and promote the bulky waste collection service

1.13 FOD
Carry out soft market testing of the waste and recycling 

collection contract 
RC April to Sep

Prepare a report to the Joint Waste Committee and FoD Cabinet on 

options for the development of the service beyond 2018

1.14 FOD/CBC
Continue to monitior options for cardboard and plastic 

collection from the kerbside
RC/SW

April 14 to 

March 15

Monitor with a view to providing an enhanced service provision in 

line with customer expectations as resources allow

P
a
g
e
 4

5



Partners Project Lead When Outcome

Procurement

1.15 FOD/CBC/CDC

Bring site provision - review current usage and provisions 

including textiles, possibile introduction of further streams 

including electrical items. 

RC/SW
April 14 to 

March 15

Enhanced service provision, reduce waste to landfill, increase 

income from textiles

1.16 All
Assess the possibility of developers providing funding for 

proivsion of waste containers at new developments
RC by March 15 Reduce costs to council

2

2.1 CBC
Assist Ubico to assess business case for new recycling 

vehicles
SW Mar to Sep

New recycling vehicle fleet compatible with Cotswold vehicle 

configuration if viable 

2.2 GCC Procure a replacement food waste treatment contract TC April to Sep Replacement contract for the treatment of food waste.

2.3 All

Consider the future brokerage of recyclable materials 

collected through contracts and potential links to the retail 

sector 

AP/SW/RC April to Sep
Provide a report to the Joint Waste Committee to consider the future 

of recycling contracts and how benefits should be optimised

2.4 All
County wide collection of sharps and the service provided 

via the NHS
RS April to Sep To determine the most cost effective way of providing this service

2.5 GCC
Begin the procurement of a replacement premises 

recycling contract
AP

April 14 to 

March 15

Report to Joint Waste Committee and GCC Cabinet on the strategy 

for procurement

GCC Carry out a review of HRC Contract with KierMG TC April to Oct
A report to Joint Waste Committee and GCC Cabinet on the options 

to extend the HRC contract

2.6 JWT Stroud multi-service contract re-procurement SR April to July To support SDC in the procurment of a replacement contract

2.7 CBC/CDC

Tendering of a new contract for the sale of recyclable 

material with consideration of associated bulking and 

transfer operations

SW April to Dec
New contract to be let by 31 December with new arrangements 

commencing April 2015

2.8 CBC/CDC

Support Ubico in producing a business case for the 

introduction of 'In-Cab Technology' across all collections 

services in the Cotswolds and Cheltenham
SW April to Dec

Business case approved by partners and 'In-Cab Technology' 

introduced by April 2015

P
a
g
e
 4

6



Partners Project Lead When Outcome

3 Infrastructure 

3.1 CDC
Assist CDC in securing a new waste and recycling depot 

to be used by Ubico for the Cotswolds service
SW Apr - July

Site acquisition, planning consents and site development for 

occupation

3.2 GCC
Assess cost/benefits of Residual Waste Transfer in 

northern parts of the county
TC Summer 2014 Arrangements for the delivery of residual waste to Javelin Park

3.3 All Infrastructure Review AP
April 14 to 

March 15

To provide a plan which reviews and provides a strategic direction to 

the use of infrastructure.

3.4 GCC Preparations for replacement HRC at Hempsted TC
April 14 to 

March 15
Planning application approval to be sought.

4 Service Developments 

4.1 CBC/CDC Assist Ubico in developing the new trade waste business SW April to Oct
Business is established in CBC, and due to be launched in CDC - 

March/April 2014

5 Surveys/ Research 

5.1 GCC Carry out a residual waste composition analysis AP Summer 14 Begin waste sort for primarily aimed at residual waste composition.

6 Contribution to Corporate Initiatives

6.1 All Report on waste reduction & recycling performance TC/RC/SW Quarterly Report performance corporately

6.2 GCC Support the residual waste working group set up by GCC TC Monthly To support the member group until a report is prepared.

7 Other

7.1 FoD
In light of CWR12, review local policy where charges can 

be made for waste collection and disposal
RC Oct-14 consistent policies under CWR12

P
a
g
e
 4

7



P
a
g
e
 4

8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Draft Press and Publicity Protocol
	Agenda item 5 Press and Publicity Protocol

	6 Overview of Severe Weather Arrangements
	7 Member and Public Questions Protocol
	Public Speaking at Joint Waste Committee Meetings 191213

	8 Outline Draft Business Plan
	Agenda item 8 - Outline Draft Business Plan 2014 - 17
	Appendix 1 (item 8) - Draft Action Plan 191213


